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October 11, 2021 

VIA EMAIL: concomm@westtisbury-ma.gov

West Tisbury Conservation Commission 
c/o Maria McFarland, Board Administrator 
1059 State Road 
P.O. Box 278, 2nd Floor 
West Tisbury, MA 02575 

Re Map 31 Lot 48/21 New Lane/Doane/Potential Wetlands Violation by Abutters 
at Map 31 Lot 68.1 41 Pond View Farm Road/Eppel/Ratification of  EO (EO)/ 
Formal hearing on restoration plan
Our File No. 10089677 

Dear Chairman Griswold: 

This firm represents Nancy Eppel (“Mrs. Eppel”) in a pending lawsuit before the 
Dukes County Superior Court, captioned Robert A. Doane and Cynthia L. Doane v. Nancy 
B. Eppel, et al., Civil Action No. 2174-CV-00030.  A copy of the Amended Complaint is 
attached for your reference.  

We write on behalf of Mrs. Eppel to request that the West Tisbury Conservation 
Commission (“WTCC”): 

 amend the current Enforcement Order (ratified on September 14, 2021) to 
remove her as a “violator” since she had no involvement in the alleged 
clearing of the subject area and there is no evidence she had anything to 
do with the work performed;  

 acknowledge the pending litigation and proceed with caution to make sure 
that the WTCC’s Order reflects the product of a full and just investigation, 
and not the outcome desired by the Doanes; and  

 adopt Richard Johnson’s recommendation to allow the affected area to 
regrow naturally for one year. 
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As you recall, we attended the WTCC’s September 14, 2021 meeting that 
addressed the current Enforcement Order.  The chronology of the matter confirms that 
our client had absolutely no direct involvement in the clearing of the subject area.  Mrs. 
Eppel holds record title to 37 Pond View Farm Road (Lot 49) and 41 Pond View Farm 
Road (Lot 68.1) as trustee of The Nancy B. Eppel Revocable Trust.  The clearing of the 
subject area occurred at the direction of Cheryl Eppel sometime in early June 2021.   

It should be noted that the Doanes filed suit on June 24, 2021, seeking money 
damages from, amongst others, Mrs. Eppel.  Subsequently, the Doanes, who were 
represented by counsel, instructed their representative, Scott Smyers from Oxbow 
Associates, Inc. to notify the WTCC of the clearing in the subject area.  Per the WTCC’s 
August 24, 2021 minutes, Mr. Smyers contacted the Board Administrator by telephone 
on August 12, 2021.  The Doanes had already filed their lawsuit at this time.  The WTCC 
should be wary of ulterior motives since it appears the intent of Mr. Smyers telephone call 
was to obtain an Enforcement Order from the WTCC to use as leverage in the Doanes’ 
lawsuit.   

On August 14, 2021, Mr. Smyers provided the WTCC with a series of photographs 
depicting the alleged area along with a 2019 Orthograph with highlighted areas pointing 
out alleged property lines, areas of clearing and the proximity to the buffer zone/wetland 
areas along Tisbury Great Pond.  There was no evidence presented to the WTCC that 
connected Mrs. Eppel to the clearing and alleged violation. The implication is that 
because Mrs. Eppel holds record title to the parcels abutting the Doanes’ property, that 
she is unequivocally responsible for any unpermitted clearing of the Doanes’ property in 
violation of West Tisbury’s Wetlands Protection By-Laws.  This is unsupported by any 
evidence before the WTCC.  

After a site visit on August 18, 2021 and without any input from Mrs. Eppel and 
short notice to Cheryl Eppel’s representative, Attorney Benjamin Hall, the WTCC voted 
to issue an Enforcement Order naming Cheryl Eppel and Mrs. Eppel (as owner of the 
property) as violators.   

The Enforcement Order approved by the WTCC on August 24, 2021 included Mrs. 
Eppel as a “violator” but again, there is no indication that the WTCC investigated or 
confirmed how Mrs. Eppel was involved in the alleged clearing of the subject area aside 
from confirming that she was the record title owner of the 37 Pond View Farm Road (Lot 
49) and 41 Pond View Farm Road (Lot 68.1).  Though the Enforcement Order includes a 
chronology as Exhibit A, it incorrectly concludes that Attorney Hall represents both Mrs. 
Eppel and her daughter, Cheryl Eppel.  This is patently incorrect.  Mrs. Eppel should not 
be bound by the terms and conditions of the Enforcement Order as required by Sections 
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5 (gathering evidence) and 8 (enforcement orders) of the Wetlands Enforcement Manual 
provided by the Massachusetts Department of Environmental Protection as guidance to 
conservation commissions for interpretation and compliance with the Massachusetts 
Wetlands Protection Act.   

The Enforcement Order was ratified by the WTCC at its September 14, 2021 
meeting.  The WTCC confirmed that neither Mrs. Eppel nor Cheryl Eppel were required 
to submit a restoration plan.  Instead, the WTCC elected to accept the proposed 
September 13, 2021 restoration plan submitted by Oxbow Associates, Inc. at the 
September 14, 2021 meeting.  

It is unclear from the WTCC’s August 24, 2021 meeting minutes if consent or notice 
was provided to Mrs. Eppel regarding the August 18, 2021 site visit as outlined in the 
Wetlands Enforcement Manual.  It is our understanding that Attorney Hall participated at 
the meeting on behalf of Cheryl Eppel only.  Cheryl Eppel is not a record title owner of 37 
Pond View Farm Road (Lot 49) and 41 Pond View Farm Road (Lot 68.1).   

The restoration plan first marshalled by Mr. Smyers at the August 24, 2021 meeting 
was not subject to challenge by Attorney Hall or Mrs. Eppel since she was not included 
in the proceedings.  In addition, the meeting minutes indicate that WTCC member Peter 
Rodegast stated that “he isn’t in favor of a big planting effort as the vegetation may come 
back on its own.”   

Ahead of the WTCC’s October 12, 2021 meeting, Richard Johnson (Vineyard 
Environmental) submitted a letter on behalf of Mr. Nagy that responds to Oxbow 
Associates, Inc.’s September 13, 2021 proposed restoration plan.  Specifically, he 
challenges three aspects of the Doanes’ restoration plan, and recommends that the 
WTCC consider allowing the subject area to “revegetate naturally for a year and then re-
evaluate the situation before allowing new plants and seed mixes to be added to the site.”  
We are certain that Mr. Smyers, on behalf of the Doanes, will argue that his much more 
expensive approach that includes herbicide treatment, extensive plantings and two years 
of monitoring should be accepted by the WTCC.  If accepted by the WTCC, we expect 
the Doanes will request that this be included by amendment to the existing Enforcement 
Order.  The Doanes will likely then use the amended Enforcement Order as an exhibit in 
their pending lawsuit to somehow support their theory that Mrs. Eppel should pay for it.   

We would also notify the WTCC to heightened hostilities taken by the Doanes 
against Mrs. Eppel.  Cheryl Eppel visited her mother’s property on October 5, 2021, and 
noticed that the Doanes placed blazed posts and “No Trespassing” signs approximate to 
the shore line of Tisbury Great Pond—see photographs attached.  According to Cheryl 
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Eppel, these signs were placed to block a path to Tisbury Great Pond the Eppels have 
been permitted to use for over 30 years.   

For the reasons articulated above, we request that the WTCC amend the 
Enforcement Order to remove Mrs. Eppel as a “violator”, or state the factual basis for this 
determination.  This is within the WTCC’s authority and would accurately represent the 
situation.  In addition, given the time of year, and views expressed by Richard Johnson 
and Peter Rodegast, it makes sense to table the adoption of a specific restoration plain 
until later in 2022 to evaluate the conditions at that time.  Indeed, the photographs that 
depict the area presently show significant regrowth already.  Finally, delaying adoption of 
an action plan will not prejudice any person or cause further harm to the impacted area.   

We look forward to addressing the WTCC at its October 12, 2021 meeting in 
support of our request that Mrs. Eppel be removed from the Enforcement Order currently 
in place.  Thank you. 

Very truly yours, 

MORRISON MAHONEY LLP 

William A. Schneider 

William A. Schneider 
WAS/rrh 
Enclosures 














































